

WAPMS 2008 Conference: Lake Tahoe, Bylaws Changes

President's Message

Scott Shuler, WAPMS President

Hello aquatic weed managers and friends. I would like to thank everyone for their participation in the 26th Annual Western Aquatic Plant Management Society Meeting held this past March in Coeur d'Alene, Idaho. It was a busy event packed with a record-setting 149 attendees and 24 exhibitors. We had an excellent program including an AERF Symposium on Eurasian watermilfoil as well as reports on many of the milfoil management programs and activities in the state of Idaho.



Don Stubbs (left) and Carlton Layne participated in the AERF presentations on Eurasian watermilfoil

I would also like to thank all of the speakers and those that assisted with the meeting preparation. The Society is indeed appreciative of your efforts! We wrapped the meeting up with a wonderful dinner cruise on beautiful Lake Coeur d'Alene and enjoyed excellent food and lively conversations.

Our 2008 Meeting is scheduled for March 3rd – 5th at the Granlibakken Conference Center & Resort (www.granlibakken.com) located near the world renowned Lake

Tahoe. This location should prove to be a very relaxing and enjoyable atmosphere. Our meeting will begin on the afternoon of Monday, March 3rd with registration, exhibitor set-up and a tour of some invasive species management activities occurring in the Tahoe Basin.



2007 conference attendees enjoy the posters and exhibitors displays

Technical sessions will begin on Tuesday with a special session on Aquatic Invasive Species in the Tahoe Basin that is being developed with the help of Lars Anderson, Past-President for WAPMS. We will continue the program with technical papers on Tuesday afternoon and Wednesday.



The grounds outside the clubhouse at Granlibakken, Lake Tahoe

The Western Aquatic Plant Management Society Newsletter, Winter 2007-8

Please make your submissions for presentations and posters to Thomas McNabb, Vice President and Program Chair, using the Call for Papers form in this newsletter or by visiting the WAPMS website at www.wapms.org.

The Board has been busy working to update the Society Bylaws, creating an operation manual for the Society, and expanding the Board of Directors. Please review the Bylaws update in this newsletter, as we plan to vote on the changes at the Conference. The Directors have discussed updating the WAPMS bylaws over the last couple of years, as they felt the current bylaws were no longer meeting the needs of the Society. Lars Andersen dug deep into old files and found that the original bylaws were adopted on March 11, 1983, at the WAPMS meeting in Las Vegas, NV. Jim McHenry (then Extension Weed Specialist at UC-Davis) was chair of the Bylaws Committee and worked with Nate Dechoretz and Barbara Mullin to develop the original bylaws. The Board expects that the updated bylaws will meet the needs of the society, but they should be reviewed more often in the future, and amended as appropriate, to continue to serve and guide the society.

The Board has also begun planning farther into the future as we work to grow and improve WAPMS. We have set the dates and location for the 2009 meeting.....the meeting will be held in Hawaii on March 22nd – 25th, 2009! In addition, we have tentatively set the location for the meetings through 2013 as follows: 2010 – Seattle, WA; 2011 – Denver, CO; 2012 – San Diego, CA; and 2013 – Coeur d'Alene, ID.

I look forward to seeing you all in Tahoe and I wish you a wonderful Holiday Season & Happy New Year.

SPECIAL NOTES ON THE CONFERENCE: Lodging, Meals, Events, Weather

Lars Anderson, Local Arrangements Chair

The venue:

Snow, cold, and blizzard or warm, clear, and calm? That's always the question for Tahoe in March. Whatever the weather, this year's WAPMS Annual Meeting will be unique in several ways. Our meeting site at the Granlibakken Conference Center provides a European style meeting atmosphere, with lodging in a range of rustic rooms and townhouses, and family-style meals in a Great Room with a beautiful, central fireplace. For those not familiar with Lake Tahoe or the Granlibakken, visit this site for directions:

http://www.granlibakken.com/granlibakken/getting_here.php

and:

http://www.granlibakken.com/conferences/executive_lodge.php

For descriptions of the lodging types (rooms, townhouses, etc.) see:

http://www.granlibakken.com/lodging/lodging_index.php

Also see map below.

Special Tahoe Session:

WAPMS will host a half-day session Tuesday, March 4th, on "Invasive Species at Lake Tahoe". Talks will cover impacts and current management of invasive weeds (Eurasian watermilfoil, curlyleaf pondweed), non-native fish problems, zebra mussel threats, climate change effects, last year's two-day Tahoe Invasive Species Workshop, and new funding to support work on invasive species. 2008 is shaping up to be a banner year for real action on all these fronts!

The Western Aquatic Plant Management Society Newsletter, Winter 2007-8

Registration at the Granlibakken

Conference Center:

This year, the lodging, three meals per day, and our pre-dinner wine and beer social and awards dinner **are all included in the registration for the Conference Center.** For those needed to separate the lodging from the rest, please request this when you check in.

CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES TRAVELING WITHIN 50 MILES OF THE VENUE AND WHO WILL NOT BE STAYING AT THE GRANLIBAKKEN, PLEASE SELECT THE CORRECT "BUTTON" WHEN REGISTERING ONLINE. THERE IS AN "OFF-SITE FEE" (COVERING MEALS, ETC.) THAT WILL BE DISCOUNTED FOR CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES. YOU'LL NEED TO SHOW PROOF OF EMPLOYER WHEN YOU CHECK IN.

FOR ONLINE REGISTRATION AT THE RESORT FOLLOW THESE INSTRUCTIONS:

1. Click on, or copy to your browser:
http://www.granlibakken.com/conferences/conference_index.php
2. Double click "Reservations"
3. Click on the "Conference Participant" button, then the "continue" button
4. Enter the "Group Number": CAWEED and the Password: CAWEED, and click "continue"
5. You're now at the WAPMS / Granlibakken registration form: click on it! (Also if questions, call: 1-800-543-3221) (But.... please...do *not* call my cell phone which is also listed!- Thanks!)
6. Fill in the blanks, etc. and you're set! (BE SURE TO SEE THE NOTE ABOVE if you are a California State employee)

Field trip:

On Monday March 3 at 2pm –pick up at Granlibakken Center- WAPMS will offer a 3 hr trip to Eurasian watermilfoil-infestations at the Truckee Dam and a tour of the new Tahoe Environmental Research Center (TERC) on the Nevada College campus near Incline (northeast shore). This unique laboratory was the dream and culmination of Dr. Charles Goldman's long research history at Lake Tahoe, and is one of the only LEEDS Platinum-Certified (green) laboratories anywhere!

>>Please reserve your spot on the bus by emailing Lars Anderson (lwanderson@ucdavis.edu) BY February 14, 2008...yes Valentine's Day!!



The Western Aquatic Plant Management Society Newsletter, Winter 2007-8

Continuing Education Hours available from WAPMS...come Prepared!

Tom Moorehouse, CEU Coordinator

The WAPMS annual conference will provide opportunity for Continuing Education Units from the following states: Arizona, California, Colorado, Idaho, Montana, New Mexico, Nevada, Oregon, Utah, Washington, and Wyoming. Remember to bring appropriate licenses to ensure you get eligible credits, which are required for any state license renewal or recertification.

SePRO Corporation Introduces Galleon* SC Aquatic Herbicide

Carmel, IN – A new tool for the selective control of emergent, floating and submersed aquatic weeds, such as hydrilla, Eurasian watermilfoil, water hyacinth, water lettuce, salvinia and duckweed, has received its Federal EPA registration. SePRO Corporation announced that its aquatic formulation of penoxsulam, Galleon SC, was registered on July 17, 2007, and they have begun seeking state registrations. The company expects to provide Galleon SC to water resource managers this fall throughout the United States, in time for the 2008 season.

According to SePRO, Galleon SC is an excellent tool for management of freshwater aquatic vegetation in quiescent bodies of water such as ponds, lakes, and reservoirs. It is also useful for the dewatered areas of still water bodies and for treating floating and emergent plant species along shoreline and riparian areas. Galleon SC is the first ALS-inhibitor to receive a Federal registration for submersed weed control. Its hydrilla-killing activity is similar to that of Sonar*. It is slow-acting and selective for many invasive species, with negligible risk

to many non-targets. SePRO expects Galleon SC to become an integral part of herbicide rotation programs in hydrilla management, as water managers fight the development of resistance to the few available herbicide options.

In SePRO's research, Galleon SC has demonstrated fairly specific efficacy on hydrilla and water hyacinth. Such treatments are made as in-water applications. In addition, SePRO found Galleon SC effective on multiple nuisance species of floating plants when sprayed on the leaf surface at rates up to 5.6 ounces/acre. SePRO has also found that Galleon SC show excellent promise when used in combination with other aquatic plant management tools. SePRO conducted its research at its own facilities, in various field sites across the country, and with many academic and agency cooperators. They believe their research has given them an excellent understanding of Galleon SC's efficacy on a wide range of target and non-target species.

"We are very pleased with the EPA registration of this product," said Dr. Steve Cockreham, Vice President of Research and Development for SePRO Corporation. "Galleon SC meets and exceeds many of the parameters set by SePRO as desired characteristics for a high performance systemic aquatic herbicide." SePRO Corporation's key business segments include the U.S. Aquatics Industry, the Greenhouse / Nursery Markets, and the Professional Turf / Landscape Management market. Their web site is www.sepro.com.



**WAPMS 2008 Conference
~ Call for Papers ~
March 3 – 5, 2008
Granlibakken Conference Center & Lodge ~
Lake Tahoe, California**

Oral presentations will be 20 minutes, including questions. Posters will be mounted in the main meeting room. Presentations are encouraged on all aspects of aquatic and wetland plant management, biology, and ecology. Presenters are requested to register for the conference.

Please e-mail the Title Form, attached below, and a brief abstract (less than 250 words) by January 14, 2008 to:

Thomas J. McNabb
Clean Lakes Inc.
P. O. Box 3186
Martinez, CA 94553
e-mail: tmcnabb@cleanlake.com

A computer and projector to handle Power Point presentations will be provided. No other presentation format will be supported. Please bring your presentation on a USB compatible flash or CD.

Title Form

Presentation Format: Oral Presentation _____ Poster _____

Title: _____

Corresponding Author: _____

Affiliation: _____

Address: _____

Phone: _____ E-mail: _____

PLEASE DO NOT DELAY. MAKE PLANS TO ATTEND, PRESENT, AND PARTICIPATE IN THIS CONFERENCE. INVITE THOSE YOU ASSOCIATE WITH TO SUBMIT AN ABSTRACT AS WELL!

Editorial Guidelines

The Western Aquatic Plant Management Society

Font: Times New Roman, size 12

Title: Bold, upper case. Align Left. End with period.

Author: Name follows Title, sentence case. Underline name of presenting author. Separate authors with commas. End with semicolon.

Affiliation: Sentence case. Include author's title or specialty, affiliation, address with zip code, e-mail address. If needed, insert semicolon and follow with second author's information. If there are three or more authors, add superscripts for clarity (for example, John Smith¹). Justify.

Body of Abstract: Leave one blank line between title/author/affiliations and the body of the abstract. No indentation; one paragraph only. Justify.

Scientific Names: For plants, animals, and microbes, etc., use the WSSA approved common name followed by the genus and species names in italics, wherever possible (for example, diquat dibromide).

Scientific Units: Use of American units, such as acres, acre-feet, pounds per acre, is acceptable, but it is recommended that these be followed by metric units in parenthesis. Use of standard abbreviations is acceptable.

See example below:

AN INTEGRATED MODELING PROGRAM TO MANAGE WATER RESOURCES IN THE LAKE WASHINGTON WATERSHED.

Frodge, J.D.¹, C. DeGasperi² & J. Burkey³. King County Dept. of Natural Resources and Parks Science and Technical Support Unit, 201 S. Jackson St., Seattle, WA 98104, ph. 206.296.8018, fax 206.296.0192, jonathan.frodge@metrokc.gov.

The Sammamish-Washington Analysis and Modeling Program (SWAMP) is a five-year program to develop an integrated water source monitoring, data handling and storage system, and modeling program to develop a science-based approach to the management of the waters of the Lake Washington watershed. The integrated modeling framework will be used to estimate future water quality and biological conditions, for habitat conservation planning and salmon recovery and to explore resource management options. This program is currently being used to assess and revise ongoing monitoring programs and the support meeting current and possible future water resource needs. The current monitoring program has been expanded to collect a higher temporal and geographic data density of physical and biological data used in model development, as well as ultra-low level metals and organic data, including potential endocrine disrupting compounds. Lakes Sammamish, Washington, and Union are being modeled with the CH3D hydrodynamic and CE-QUAL-ICM water quality models. Trophic interactions in the lakes are addressed using a nutrient-phytoplankton-depth model and a visual foraging-bioenergetics model for fish predation. The Sammamish River is modeled using CE-QUAL-W2. Tributary boundary conditions are being developed using the HSPF watershed model coupled with current and future landuse data generated using UW-UrbanSIM. Ecological risk models are being developed for habitat and biological assessments particularly focused on threatened and endangered species. Model runs, outputs, pedigrees, data sources and database are being computationally integrated using Framework for Risk Analysis in Multimedia Environmental System software.



**WAPMS 2008 Conference Registration
And Membership Application
March 3 – 5, 2008
Granlibakken Conference Center & Lodge ~
Lake Tahoe, California**

Registrant Information:

Name: _____

Company or Affiliation: _____

Address: _____

Phone #: _____ Fax #: _____

E-mail: _____



Registration Fees:

Pre-Registration (before February 15, 2008) \$100.00

Registration (after February 15, 2008 or at door) \$125.00

Sponsorship Opportunities:

(Below fees in addition to exhibitor fee & registration fee)

- Gold Sponsorship: \$2,000 – Corporate listing in conference guide, signage at the conference, and hosting / co-hosting of President’s Reception.
- Silver Sponsorship: \$1,000 – Corporate listing in conference guide and signage at the conference.
- Bronze Sponsorship: \$500 – Corporate listing in conference guide.

Corporate Exhibits: \$300.00

Includes registration & membership dues to WAPMS

Membership Only: \$ 10.00

No conference registration

Total Amount Due:

Registration Fee: \$ _____

+ Sponsorship: \$ _____

+Corporate Exhibit: \$ _____

+Membership Only: \$ _____

Total: \$ _____

Make Checks Payable to: Western Aquatic Plant
Management Society or WAPMS

Send this Form and Payment to:

WAPMS

Attn: Thomas Moorhouse

Clean Lakes, Inc.

P. O. Box 3548

Coeur d’Alene, ID 83816

For additional information, contact Thomas Moorhouse
at 208-929-2757 or tmoorhouse@cleanlake.com



**THE WESTERN AQUATIC PLANT
MANAGEMENT SOCIETY, INC.**

BYLAWS

Adoption date March 11, 1983

AS AMENDED March 4, 2008



DRAFT

**BYLAWS
THE WESTERN AQUATIC PLANT MANAGEMENT
SOCIETY, INCORPORATED**

(A Corporation Not for Profit)

**ARTICLE I
SOCIETY NAME**

The name of this Society shall be THE WESTERN AQUATIC PLANT MANAGEMENT SOCIETY, INCORPORATED (hereafter termed “Society”)

**ARTICLE II
SOCIETY OBJECTIVES**

The objectives of the Society shall be to:

1. To establish a forum for the exchange of information on aquatic vegetation management techniques, strategies, and research through periodic meetings and other appropriate means.
2. To cooperate with local, state, regional, and national agencies, both public and private, in the identification of and solution to aquatic vegetation problems.
3. To promote uniformity and coordination of activities among agencies concerned with the regulatory aspects of aquatic plant management.
4. Encourage scientific research and assist in promoting the control and management of aquatic plants through scientifically sound procedures.
5. Recognize and promote scientific advancement of the members and facilitate the education of aquatic plant scientists through scholarships and other assistance programs.
6. Extend and develop public interest in, and understanding of, aquatic plant management problems and solutions.
7. Cooperate with local chapters and other societies and organizations with similar and related interests.

**ARTICLE III
PLACE OF BUSINESS**

The principal place of business shall be located at such a place as decided by the Board of Directors may decide.



DRAFT

ARTICLE IV OFFICERS

Section A. The officers of the Society shall be the Immediate Past President, President, Vice President/Program Chair, Secretary/Treasurer and four (4) Directors. The Board of Directors of this Society shall consist of not more than eight (8) members and shall include the active officers of the Society. The Society shall maintain a good and sufficient surety bond in an amount not less than the total assets of the Society covering all Officers and Directors.

Section B. President. The President shall preside at all business meetings of the Society and at all meetings of the Board of Directors. The President shall maintain and exercise general supervision over the affairs of the Society, may sign checks in payment of obligations of this Society during the absence or incapacitation of the Secretary/Treasurer, shall appoint all Standing Committee and Special Committee Chairs and Special Representatives unless otherwise specified under **ARTICLE XIII** and shall discharge such other duties as usually pertain to the office of the President. The President is an Ex-Officio member of all committees of the Society.

Section C. Vice President/Program Chair. The Vice President shall exercise the powers and perform the duties of the President in the absence or disability of the President or in case of a vacancy in the office of the President. The Vice President shall serve as Chair of the Meeting/Program Committee. The Vice President shall also perform such duties as may be assigned by the President or the Board of Directors.

Section D. Secretary/Treasurer. The Secretary/Treasurer shall keep full and current minutes of all meetings of this Society and of the Board of Directors. This officer shall be responsible for the maintenance of membership records, shall issue notices of meetings, and shall conduct such part of the correspondence of the Society as is usually conducted by the Secretary/Treasurer of similar organizations. The Secretary/Treasurer shall serve on the Newsletter Committee. The Secretary/Treasurer shall serve as Archivist responsible for maintaining the security of important records of the Society. The Secretary/Treasurer shall establish guidelines and procedures for placing items in the archives. The Secretary/Treasurer shall collect and receipt all dues, assessments, and other income. The Secretary/Treasurer shall deposit promptly all funds of the Society, including funds received for the Scholastic Endowment Fund, in such depository as shall be approved and designated by the Board of Directors. Checks in payment of obligations of this Society shall be signed by the Secretary/Treasurer, who shall with the approval of the Board of Directors, pay all bills of this Society and make such other disbursements as are necessary and incidental to the operation of the Society. The Secretary/Treasurer shall at the annual meeting of the Society, and if directed by the Board of Directors at special meetings, make full and true report of the financial condition of this Society. The Secretary/Treasurer shall provide for an annual audit of all books, vouchers, and necessary documents of the Society prior to or at each annual meeting of the Society. The audit shall be conducted by the Audit Committee as appointed by the President. The



DRAFT

financial statements as prepared during the audit shall be included as part of the annual proceedings of the Society. This officer shall perform such other duties as are usually incident to the office of Secretary/Treasurer and as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

Section I. Immediate Past President. The Immediate Past President shall serve as an advisor to the President and the Board of Directors and shall serve as Chair of the Nominating Committee. This officer shall perform such duties as specified herein and as may be assigned by the President or the Board of Directors.

Section J. Directors. The Directors shall assist in administering the affairs of this Society and serve as Chairpersons of Committees as appointed by the President.

ARTICLE V TERM OF OFFICE

The term of office of all officers of the Society, except the Secretary/Treasurer and Directors shall be one year, or until their successors shall be duly elected and qualified. The term of office of the Secretary/Treasurer shall be three years. As described in ARTICLE XI, however, the Vice President/Program Chair automatically progresses from that office through the offices of President, and Immediate Past President. The term of office in each is one year, so that the elected Vice President/Program Chair remains an officer for three consecutive years. The term of office of all officers shall begin at the close of the annual meeting at which they are elected to that office. Directors shall serve a two-year term on the Board of Directors, and shall also begin their term at the close of the business meeting at which they are elected. Any Officer or Director of the Society who fails to fulfill the duties of the office without valid reasons may be removed from office by a two-thirds vote of the Board of Directors. The vacant office shall be filled as described in ARTICLE XI, Section D.

ARTICLE VI BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section A. The President of the Society shall chair the Board of Directors.

Section B. The Board of Directors shall meet upon the call of the President or upon the request of five or more members of the Board of Directors directed in writing to the Secretary/Treasurer. At least fifteen (15) days prior notice in writing shall be given by the Secretary/Treasurer to all members of the Board of Directors as to any meetings of the Board of Directors. The time and place of such meetings shall be designated by the President. A majority of the members of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Proxies for absent Board Members requires verbal pre-notification of the President and Secretary/Treasurer, must be assigned in writing to a member in good standing and be provided to the Secretary/Treasurer for the record upon completion of roll-call. Qualifying Proxies will assume the privileges, duties, and



DRAFT

responsibilities of the absent Board Member during the course of the meeting including the right to vote on Board matters. An action of the Board of Directors shall be upon the vote of the majority of its members present. Except under extenuating circumstances (as approved by the Board) which may prevent it, the Board of Directors shall meet no fewer than three (3) times annually. One meeting shall be held immediately before the annual meeting of the Society; one meeting shall be held immediately after the annual meeting of the Society; and one additional meeting shall be held during the interim between the annual meetings.

Section C. The Board of Directors shall manage the affairs of the Society and shall have the power: (1) to fill any vacancies among the officers of the Society including the membership of the Board of Directors; except as provided in Article XI, Section D; (2) to prescribe the duties of the officers of the Society not otherwise prescribed in the Bylaws of the Society; (3) to provide rules and regulations for the conduct of the affairs of this Society as are not consistent with the provisions of the Bylaws; (4) to accept or reject applications for membership in this Society; (5) to increase the amount of the Officers' & Directors' bond if the Board deems the current bond insufficient; (6) the Board of Directors shall have full power of the Society in all matters demanding action between meetings and shall submit at the next succeeding meeting of the Society a report on all actions taken by them under authority of this section.

ARTICLE VII QUORUM

A quorum of the business meeting of the Society shall consist of not fewer than thirty (30) voting members, or ten percent (10%) of the membership, whichever is smaller, at least two (2) of whom shall be officers of the Society.

ARTICLE VIII MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

All motions and resolutions presented at any annual meeting of the Society involving matters of policy, administration or business shall be referred to the Board of Directors who shall consider the same and report its recommendation back to the Society; provided, however, that should any matter require immediate action by the Society, such matters may be considered immediately by consent of three-fourths of the active members present and voting.

ARTICLE IX MEETINGS

Section A. There shall be an annual meeting of the Society for the election of officers, the presentation of papers and discussion on aquatic plant control and management, uses of aquatic vegetation and related subjects and such other business as may be properly brought before it. Such annual meetings shall be held at such time and place as the Board



DRAFT

of Directors may decide. At least sixty (60) days prior notice shall be given in writing to all members as to the time and place of the annual meeting.

Section B. Special meetings of the Society may be held whenever the Board of Directors deems such meetings necessary or whenever ten or more active members shall make a written request to the Secretary/Treasurer. Such requests shall be placed with the Board of Directors which shall designate a time and place for such special meetings. The Secretary/Treasurer shall give written notice of all special meetings of the Society to all members at least four (4) weeks prior to the date of such special meetings.

ARTICLE X FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Society shall be the calendar year.

ARTICLE XI ELECTION OF OFFICERS

Section A. The election of Officers and Directors of the Society shall be held as part of the annual business meeting held in conjunction with the regular annual meeting.

Section B. At each annual business meeting, elections shall be held for the office of Vice President/Program Chair and half the directors (2), while elections shall be held at three year intervals for the office of Secretary/Treasurer. Elections will not be held for the offices of President, or Immediate Past President, as the Vice President/Program Chair electee shall automatically progress through each of these offices, serving a one-year term in each as specified in ARTICLE V. Officers of the Society shall be elected by majority vote of the voting members present at the annual meeting of the Society and shall serve until the close of the annual meeting of the Society marking the end of the term of their elected office, with the above stated exceptions that the Vice President shall automatically become the President, and the President shall automatically become Immediate Past President. Individuals in the offices of Secretary/Treasurer or Director may be elected to consecutive terms. Two (2) new Directors shall also be elected each year for a term of two (2) years, or until their successors shall be duly elected and qualified.

Section C. No member shall be eligible for office who has not been a voting member of the Society for the immediate past year.

Section D. Vacancies in the office of President between terms shall automatically be filled through succession in the following order: Vice President/Program Chair, Secretary/Treasurer, or a current Director by the majority vote of the Board. All vacancies, other than that in the office of President, shall be filled through appointment by the Board of Directors.



DRAFT

ARTICLE XII MEMBERSHIP

Section A. Categories. All Membership categories shall be subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. There shall be the following Membership Categories:

1. **Individual Member.** Any person who is interested in the advancement of the Society and its goals.
2. **Sustaining Member.** Companies, institutions, or organizations interested in the advancement of the Society and its goals.
3. **Student Member.** Any full-time individual student who is interested in the advancement of the Society and its goals.
4. **Honorary Member.** An Honorary member shall hold in perpetuity all rights of active membership. Before being considered for honorary membership a person must meet the following criteria:
 - a. The nominee must have contributed significantly to the field of aquatic vegetation management. (The individual should be retired and no longer employed in the field of aquatic vegetation management, except that part-time work as a consultant shall be permissible).
 - b. The nominee must have been a voting member of the Society for no less than five (5) years.
 - c. The nominee must have actively promoted the Society and its affairs during their membership.
 - d. Nominees for honorary membership shall be submitted to the Board of Directors. Nominees will be evaluated by the Board to ascertain that they meet the criteria for eligibility as an honorary member. Honorary membership shall be approved by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.

Section B. Voting Privileges. All Individual, Student, Honorary, and one designated representative from a Sustaining Membership who are members in good standing with current, paid-up dues shall have the right to vote.

Section C. Membership dues. Dues amounts for each membership category shall be proposed by the Board of Directors and voted upon by the membership at the Annual Business Meeting. Annual dues are due by January 31 and shall in no case be paid later than the first full day of the annual meeting to qualify for the full rights and privileges of membership in that calendar year. The fiscal year is the calendar year.



DRAFT

ARTICLE XIII COMMITTEES AND REPRESENTATIVES

Section A. Standing Committees. Standing Committee Chairs shall be appointed by the President. Additional Committee members not already designated in the Bylaws shall be voting members of the Society, selected by the Chair and approved by the President. The number of persons on each committee may be changed at the discretion of the President and the Board of Directors. Standing Committees are as follows:

1. **Bylaws and Resolutions Committee.** This committee shall consist of not fewer than three (3) voting members of the Society. All resolutions and Bylaws changes to be considered shall be presented to this committee, who shall present worthy suggestions to the Society in a form appropriate for adoption, subject to Bylaws Article VIII. All petitions with ten (10) or more signatures of voting members shall be brought to the attention of the Society. Bylaws changes, adopted in accordance with ARTICLE VIII shall be incorporated into the current Bylaws by this committee and submitted to the Secretary/Treasurer for the official record. The Chair of this Committee shall be the Immediate Past President.

2. **Finance Committee.** This committee shall have at least three (3) members, one of whom shall be the Secretary/Treasurer of the Society. The committee shall 1) review all financial records at the end of each fiscal year, 2) prepare a report on the Society's financial status for presentation to the Board of Directors at the mid-year meeting, 3) prepare the annual budget of the Society, 4) advise and assist the Secretary/Treasurer in maintaining Society financial records and in preparing reports for the Board of Directors. The Chair of this committee shall be the Secretary-Treasurer.

3. **Meeting/Program Planning Committee.** This committee shall have at least three (3) members. The task for the committee shall be 1) to develop programs for each annual meeting and 2) investigate alternative sites within a region, and provide a recommendation to the Board of Directors to aid in selecting the meeting site and property. Upon selection, this committee shall be responsible for preparing the logistical aspects of the annual meeting. Its duties shall include 3) arranging for social activities and functions, 4) providing information for the Newsletter and website, 5) suggesting appropriate 'local' speakers, 6) securing meeting sponsors, 7) informing the Board of Directors about the arrangements. This committee shall be responsible for making all arrangements concerning commercial or other exhibits at annual meetings. The committee shall coordinate its activities with hotel management, the Secretary/Treasurer, and other relevant persons. The committee shall be responsible for establishing annual meeting levels of recognition, recommending exhibit fees, recognizing contributors at the meeting, securing names of the designated representative from each exhibitor attending and administering programs to give awards or prizes to exhibitors.



DRAFT

The committee shall coordinate its efforts with the Vice President/Program Chair. The Chair shall be the Vice President/Program Chair.

4. **Membership Committee.** This committee shall consist of not fewer than three (3) active members of the Society; one of whom shall be the Secretary/Treasurer, and one of whom shall be the Vice President/Program Chair. This committee shall investigate and promote memberships in the Society. This committee shall inform the Society about the death of a member. The committee shall assist in the preparation of letters of condolence sent on behalf of the Society by the President. The Chair of this committee shall be the Secretary/Treasurer.

5. **Nominating Committee.** The Nominating Committee shall consist of not fewer than three (3) members, to be chaired by the Immediate Past President, and shall recommend to the Society candidates for election to the several offices. This committee shall inform the Society membership of the slate of nominees for office at prior to or at the annual business meeting.

6. **Editorial Committee.** The Editorial Committee shall be responsible for the generation and distribution of The Society's newsletter with input from the Meeting/Program Planning Committee or the Board of Directors. The Committee shall also generate and distribute other Society' News as determined by The Board. The chair shall be a Director of The Society appointed by the President.

7. **Webmaster Committee.** The Webmaster Committee shall be responsible for the development and maintenance of the Society's Website as directed by the Editorial Committee and The Board of Directors. The chair shall be a Director of he Society appointed by the President.

Section B. Special Committees. Such other committees as from time to time may be deemed necessary shall be appointed by the President.

Section C. Special Representatives. The President shall appoint, with approval of the Board of Directors, special representatives of the Society. These persons shall attend meetings of organizations such as may be identified to act as liaisons between these organizations and the Society.

ARTICLE XIV RULES OF ORDER

Business sessions of the Society shall be conducted in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order, newly revised.



DRAFT

ARTICLE XV PUBLICATIONS

All publications of the Society shall be issued under the direction of the Editorial Committee and shall become the property of the Society.

ARTICLE XVI SOCIETY SCHOLASTIC ENDOWMENT

Section A. The Western Aquatic Plant Management Society Scholastic Endowment shall be used to encourage and enhance student participation and public interest in the Society.

Section B. The Society Scholastic Endowment fund shall be maintained in the Society account administrated by the Board of Directors and shall be used to support scholarships and student activities in the Society. Expenditures shall be made following recommendation by the Finance Committee with the approval of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE XVII ACTIVITIES LIMITED TO EXEMPT PURPOSES

No part of the net earnings of the Society shall accrue to the benefit of, or be distributable to its members, trustees, officers, or other private persons, except that the Society shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in Article First hereof. No part of the activities of the Society shall be lobbying or otherwise attempting to influence legislation and the Society shall not participate in or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) and political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office. In the case of a written request from a governmental body, committee, or subdivision, the Society shall provide technical assistance and advice providing the Society deems it appropriate to provide such assistance. Notwithstanding, any other provision of these articles, the Society shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on by (A) by an organization exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law) or (B) by an organization, contributions to which are deductible under Section (170) (c) (2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding provisions of any future United States Internal Revenue Law).



DRAFT

ARTICLE XVIII AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may be amended by three-fourths vote of the active members present at any annual meeting, provided the proposed amendment has been approved by the Board of Directors and given in writing to the Secretary/Treasurer, and that a written notice of said proposed amendment has been transmitted to active members thirty (30) days before the annual meeting.

ARTICLE XIX DISSOLUTION

Upon the dissolution of the Society, the Executive Board shall, after paying or making provisions for the payment of all of the liabilities of the Society, transfer all the assets of the Society to the Aquatic Plant Management Society, Inc. or to such organization or other organizations organized and operated exclusively for educational or scientific purposes, as the Board of Directors shall determine. No member of the Board of Directors or of the Society shall be held personally liable for payment of liabilities beyond the capability of the Society to pay.

The above and foregoing Bylaws of THE WESTERN AQUATIC PLANT MANAGEMENT SOCIETY, INCORPORATED, were adopted on March 11, 1983, revised March 4, 2008.